# PERFORMANCE AND RESOURCE MANAGEMENT SUB (POLICE) COMMITTEE Wednesday, 30 November 2016

Minutes of the meeting of the Performance and Resource Management Sub (Police)
Committee held at Committee Rooms, 2nd Floor, West Wing, Guildhall on
Wednesday, 30 November 2016 at 11.30 am

#### **Present**

#### Members:

Deputy Douglas Barrow (Chairman)
Nicholas Bensted-Smith
Deputy Henry Pollard (Ex-Officio Member)
Lucy Sandford
Deputy James Thomson

#### Officers:

Caroline Al-Beyerty - Deputy Chamberlain

Pat Stothard - Head of Internal Audit and Risk Management

lan Dyson - Commissioner, City of London Police

Hayley Williams - City of London Police
Stuart Phoenix - City of London Police
Neil Davies - Town Clerk's Department
Alex Orme - Town Clerk's Department
Charlotte Taffel - Town Clerk's Department

#### 1. APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were received from Alderman Alison Gowman, Alderman lan Luder and Kenneth Ludlam.

# 2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA

There were no declarations of interest.

#### 3. MINUTES

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 7 September 2016 be approved.

#### 4. OUTSTANDING REFERENCES

RESOLVED – That the list of Outstanding References be noted and updated.

The Sub-Committee noted that the Commissioner and Assistant Commissioners' follow up reports were useful.

#### Workforce Plan

The Commissioner updated the Sub-Committee on the Workforce Plan. The draft plan completed early 2016 had not met HMIC's requirements. The revised

plan had been delayed due to a number of reasons outlined in a note sent to the Chairman including the resignation of the HR Director. The Commissioner noted that recruitment for a new HR Director was underway and that the post should be filled by April 2017.

In the note to the Chairman, the Assistant Commissioner had set out next steps to get the plan to an adequate standard and expected it to be complete by the end of January 2017. The Chairman would circulate the note to the Sub-Committee in relation to this. The next HMIC inspection was scheduled for 2017.

The Sub-Committee noted the importance of identifying future demand which will be critical in informing both the workforce plan, resource deployment and the future operating model. Discussion ensued on how future trends are predicted, the need for digital skills and the potential of using external consultants to produce the future demand profile.

#### 5. INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE REPORT

The Sub-Committee received a report of the Chamberlain updating on the work of Internal Audit that had been undertaken for the CoLP since the last report in September 2016.

The Chairman noted that 48 Standard Operating Procedures (SOP) had not been reviewed within a year of the set deadlines. The Commissioner explained that there had been some delay in getting policies signed off by the appropriate authority. Compared with the previous year these numbers were lower, and that further progress had been made since the audit work which reported figures for the end of April 2016. The PMG had received an update showing alower percentage which CoLP would circulate to the Sub-Committee.

The Chairman sought clarification on the amber items contained in the report and highlighted the outstanding recommendations. The items would be reviewed by the Commissioner. The Commissioner commented that the outstanding foreign currency would be banked that week and that the new cash management SOP would be presented to SMB in December. On gifts and hospitality, the CoLP were looking into best practice on ensuring the register was easy to use, accessible and up to date.

The Economic Crime Academy business plan would be in place by the new financial year. The Committee questioned the impact of demand on costs, and the Commissioner explained that a balance between public service and profitable work would be required.

It was confirmed that outstanding audit reports noted in the Schedule of Internal Audit Projects 2016/17 would be completed by March 2017. Recommendations were also outstanding from the audits completed on Standard Operating Procedure, Economic Crime Academy and Community Consultation. Dates for completion, in particular regarding the Telecoms PBX recommendations, were

required, and the Chamberlain would come back to the Sub-Committee with an update and target completion dates once they had consulted with IT.

#### RECEIVED.

#### 6. CITY OF LONDON DOMESTIC ABUSE ACTION PLAN UPDATE

The Sub-Committee received a report of the Commissioner of Police on the City of London Police Domestic Abuse Action Plan.

The Sub-Committee and the Commissioner welcomed the comprehensive report and the work completed on vulnerability which had greatly improved. It was suggested that the wording in the Foreword could be more inclusive surrounding equalities, other groups affected, such as men, and other forms of domestic abuse such as coercive control. It was also noted that there was no mention of Information sharing protocols with partners which would require monitoring. The Sub-Committee asked if it was possible for Front Desk staff to use audio recording, potentially body worn cameras, as current CCTV did not provide audio which could be useful. The Commissioner said he would explore this back in Force.

It was confirmed that awareness training for domestic abuse had commenced provided by Learning & Development and would continue between December 2016 and February 2017. It was further confirmed that the Domestic Abuse Problem Profile would be completed by the end of 2016.

With reference to work in progress on the Action Plan, the Chairman asked if work will be completed by April 2017 and whether it was an issue of staffing that prevented this work from moving forward. The Commissioner noted that the training package on domestic abuse was part of a sequence of training that is currently being undertaken, and while there are fewer officers, this was being carried out alongside other commitments.

The Chairman requested assurance that all 2016 action points were achieved or to be achieved by the end of the year, and asked that an updated action plan and timeline be circulated to the Sub-Committee.

#### RECEIVED.

## 7. 2ND QUARTER PERFORMANCE AGAINST MEASURES SET OUT IN THE POLICING PLAN 2016-19

The Sub-Committee received a report of the Commissioner of Police summarising performance against measures set out in the Policing Plan 2016-19 for the period 1 April 2016 to 30 September 2016.

The Commissioner was satisfied with the position whilst noting areas that required improvement. Violence without injury was rising, and more needed to be done in terms of repeat offenders, warrants and patrolling. A profile on this has been commissioned by the Force PMG. Acquisitive crime and Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB), particularly aggressive begging, remained issues. The Chairman questioned whether there would be any value in breaking down

statistics on victim vs. non victim based ASB which the Commissioner undertook to investigate to see if this was possible for the next quarter report.

The Chairman questioned if the numbers for recording ASB could be monitored on both the new and old recording system for a short period, as current trends were masked by the sudden increase in numbers under the new recording system. The CoLP noted that due to the new recording method this was not possible.

The Chairman questioned whether the Q2 measure on levels of victim-based violent crime was improving as the figures were marginal. The Commissioner asserted that the level of such crime was stable (positive) and had flattened out.

The Sub-Committee asked what the CoLP were doing on the issue of bike theft. This was an issue that affected Islington and Camden particularly and the CoLP are working with the Metropolitan Police in sharing intelligence. The Commissioner noted the need to act smarter in tackling the arrests of those who carry out this crime for example by using banning orders.

The Sub-Committee also questioned whether CoLP efforts on cyber-crime were having an effect, and asked the Commissioner to look into other regional or national figures as by means of comparison. The Commissioner noted that the Workforce Plan would take into consideration - advanced training and recruit new skillsets to meet future demand in tackling cyber-crime, as well as issues such as 24/7 reporting.

With regards to survey satisfaction, the Sub-Committee questioned why the response numbers for the Police Memorial event were exceptionally low. The Commissioner noted that this may be down to 'survey fatigue' experienced by those who receive online surveys. To improve response rates, the CoLP are looking into improving corporate communications and consolidating the number of surveys sent out. The Commissioner suggested a possible 'layering' approach so that only those showing dissatisfaction would be asked to complete a more detailed return. He said he would explore the possibilities of this back in force.

The Chairman noted that quarterly or six-monthly trend data for performance summaries would be beneficial, and that graphs for future meetings be produced in colour for electronic use.

#### RECEIVED.

#### 8. HMIC INSPECTION UPDATE

The Sub-Committee received a report of the Commissioner of Police on the HMIC Inspection Update.

Following a letter exchange between the Commissioner & Chairman and the HMI, the Commissioner outlined to other Members that the assessments in grading did not match the narrative detail in the Legitimacy report. The HMI had

emphasised that the CoLP were a good force and that they were confident the CoLP would meet future challenges. The concern of the Sub-Committee was the effect the report and the rating may have on public perception. The Commissioner stated that he would update Members once a response had been received from the HMI.

With reference to keeping children safe, the main issue was on surveys of children leaving custody, and who in the CoLP held absolute responsibility for child protection. The Commissioner confirmed that accountability would lie with Commander Operations (Vulnerability) and the Detective Chief Superintendent, Head of Crime Directorate (Public Protection).

The Chairman sought clarification that a progress update on the latest Efficiency Report HMIC recommendations would be delivered at the February Sub-Committee meeting. This was confirmed by the Commissioner.

The Commissioner drew attention to the areas graded inadequate which relate to ICT. An ICT Strategy was part of the CoLP's plans going forward and the Commissioner stated that he felt the HMIC had not taken into consideration that the Force had in the last year or so migrated from having an in-house IT function to an outsourced managed service. An IT Board existed within the force to share user requirements with the service providers. The Commissioner was content that all three HMIC recommendations from the Efficiency report were being addressed.

The Commissioner also noted that Crime Data would be addressed in the next inspection and that the CoLP had sufficient processes in place - with an independent crime force for audit recording taking place over the past 18 months which reported to the Assistant Commissioner. It was noted that the inspection does not consider risk, and relies on pure audit results. The Commissioner had commissioned a gap analysis on this and a meeting was being convened to discuss current shortcomings.

The Chairman questioned whether neighbourhood teams were closely aligned with the communities they served and were thus able to provide local intelligence on organised crime groups (OCGs) operating in their area. The Commissioner noted that this was not as applicable to the CoLP as it might be to other Forces with different types of organised crime groups – as the City OCGs focus on fraud/economic crime. Boiler rooms (using short term office lets) was used as the example to illustrate this point.

The Sub-Committee questioned the work with the Metropolitan Police Service in regards to integrated offender management, and it was noted that a proportionate amount of resource should be used to identify the three offenders relevant to the City.

The Commissioner noted that HMIC were satisfied that the CoLP were now fully compliant with the Best Use of Stop and Search Scheme, and an updated note on this would be circulated to Members.

#### RECEIVED.

# 9. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE

There were no questions.

#### 10. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT

The Commissioner noted that currently the CoLP were operating at a level that cannot be maintained, and that work was being done on assessing demand, populating the workforce plan, and considering the operating model, including identifying inefficiencies, and assessing supervision levels and ranks within the CoLP. The challenge would be balancing the budget and medium term financial plan (MTFP), which the CoLP were working closely on with the Chamberlain and a paper will go to the Grand Committee regarding the MTFP in December. The Chamberlain noted that the Grand Committee would want assurance on value for money and a time frame for any gap in funding granted.

Looking forward, the Commissioner noted the capability threat even after the new workforce model has been completed.

The Sub-Committee briefly discussed the apprenticeship levy and how the CoLP is working with the City of London Corporation in this area.

#### 11. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

**RESOLVED** – That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part I of the Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act.

#### 12. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES

**RESOLVED** – That the non-public minutes of the meeting held on 7 September 2016 be approved.

### 13. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE

There were no non-public questions.

# 14. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND WHICH THE SUB-COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED

There were no non-public urgent items.

The meeting ended at 12.55

\_\_\_\_\_

Chairman

**Contact Officer: Charlotte Taffel** 

tel. no.: 020 7332 3801

charlotte.taffel@cityoflondon.gov.uk